

CHAPTER.....

AN ACT relating to state financial administration; making appropriations from the State General Fund and the State Highway Fund for the support of the civil government of the State of Nevada for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2010, and beginning July 1, 2010, and ending June 30, 2011; providing for the use of the money so appropriated; revising the provisions governing the line of credit from the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund; making various other changes relating to the financial administration of the State; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

**Section 1.** The following sums are hereby appropriated from the State General Fund for the purposes expressed in sections 2 to 31, inclusive, of this act and for the support of the government of the State of Nevada for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2010, and beginning July 1, 2010, and ending June 30, 2011.

**Sec. 2.** The Office and Mansion of the Governor.

For the support of the:

	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Office of the Governor.....	\$2,090,298	\$2,103,651
Governor's Mansion .....	289,968	352,417
Governor's Office for Consumer Health Assistance .....	381,275	384,358
High Level Nuclear Waste .....	1,726,904	1,733,413
Energy Conservation.....	302,963	342,070
Governor's Office of Homeland Security .....	484,342	488,658

**Sec. 3.** The Office of Lieutenant Governor.

For the support of the

Office of the Lieutenant Governor .....	\$580,989	\$610,793
--	-----------	-----------



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
<b>Sec. 4. The Office of Attorney General.</b>		
For the support of the:		
Attorney General		
Administration Account.....	\$11,967,470	\$12,818,464
Special Litigation Account .....	1,624,213	1,624,221
Medicaid Fraud Control		
Unit .....	100	100
Crime Prevention Program .....	226,964	229,434
Office of the Extradition		
Coordinator .....	609,088	608,406
Bureau of Consumer		
Protection .....	1,232,163	1,233,061
Advisory Council for		
Prosecuting Attorneys.....	100	100
<b>Sec. 5. The Office of Secretary of State.</b>		
For the support of the:		
Office of the Secretary of		
State .....	\$11,005,044	\$11,253,706
HAVA Election Reform .....	36,527	100
<b>Sec. 6. The Office of State Treasurer.</b>		
For the support of the Office of the		
State Treasurer .....	\$1,228,908	\$1,221,262
<b>Sec. 7. The Office of State Controller.</b>		
For the support of the Office of the		
State Controller .....	\$4,535,498	\$4,380,512
<b>Sec. 8. Department of Administration.</b>		
For the support of the:		
Budget and Planning		
Division.....	\$2,833,988	\$3,305,066
Division of Internal Audits .....	1,852,343	1,886,206
Information Technology		
Division.....	694,941	561,176
Information Technology		
Projects .....	4,159,179	1,480,509
Merit Award Board .....	4,294	4,294
National Judicial College and		
National College of Juvenile		
and Family Justice .....	322,050	322,050



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
<b>Sec. 9.</b> State Public Works Board.		
Public Works		
Administration .....	\$276,490	\$281,341
<b>Sec. 10.</b> Department of Taxation.		
For the support of the Department		
of Taxation .....	\$26,406,273	\$26,284,600
<b>Sec. 11.</b> Legislative Fund.		
For the support of the:		
Legislative Commission.....	\$291,030	\$149,691
Audit Division.....	3,465,982	3,484,124
Administrative Division.....	9,608,356	9,210,614
Legal Division.....	7,867,852	8,030,791
Research Division .....	4,886,824	4,811,534
Fiscal Analysis Division .....	3,369,460	3,095,928
Interim Legislative		
Operations.....	604,873	613,927
<b>Sec. 12.</b> Supreme Court of Nevada.		
For the support of the:		
Supreme Court of Nevada.....	\$5,463,464	\$4,923,489
Supreme Court Law		
Library .....	1,651,991	1,684,258
Judicial Programs and Services		
Division.....	592,465	608,717
Judicial Retirement System		
State Share .....	1,788,200	1,851,200
Senior Justice and Senior Judge		
Program.....	1,017,032	969,112
Judicial Selection .....	17,978	17,978
<b>Sec. 13.</b> Commission on Judicial		
Discipline.		
For the support of the Commission		
on Judicial Discipline.....	\$671,487	\$691,286
<b>Sec. 14.</b> District Judges' Salaries.		
For the support of the District		
Judges' Salaries.....	\$16,648,290	\$16,893,726
<b>Sec. 15.</b> Commission on Economic		
Development.		
For the support of:		
Commission on Economic		
Development.....	\$4,685,251	\$4,676,247
Rural Community		
Development.....	265,433	258,796



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Procurement Outreach Program.....	\$98,024	\$103,746
<b>Sec. 16. Department of Education.</b>		
For the support of:		
Education State Programs .....	\$4,847,575	\$5,443,513
Career and Technical Education .....	476,103	476,103
Teacher Education and Licensing.....	100	100
Nutrition Education Programs.....	380,294	380,305
Continuing Education .....	661,861	661,595
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act .....	20,991	20,991
Proficiency Testing .....	5,928,830	5,732,552
Student Incentive Grants.....	383,036	383,382
Discretionary Grants – Restricted .....	1,875	1,875
<b>Sec. 17. Nevada System of Higher Education.</b>		
For the support of:		
System Administration.....	\$5,002,878	\$5,017,928
University Press .....	811,510	813,951
Statewide Programs—UNR.....	5,869,348	5,869,348
Intercollegiate Athletics—UNR.....	5,850,604	5,850,604
Statewide Programs—UNLV .....	1,306,377	1,310,307
Intercollegiate Athletics—UNLV .....	7,903,410	7,927,186
Agricultural Experiment Station .....	8,030,255	8,030,255
Cooperative Extension Service .....	8,247,636	8,247,636
UNLV Dental School.....	8,659,141	8,685,220
System Computing Center .....	19,813,714	19,873,320
UNLV Law School .....	8,217,705	8,242,427
Desert Research Institute .....	8,745,728	8,748,923
State-Funded Perkins Loan .....	43,545	43,676
University of Nevada, Reno .....	99,600,817	99,782,638



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
School of Medical Sciences .....	\$30,255,977	\$30,287,538
Health Laboratory and Research.....	1,807,905	1,807,905
University of Nevada, Las Vegas.....	124,075,240	124,050,781
College of Southern Nevada .....	78,217,743	77,702,066
Western Nevada College.....	15,716,152	15,698,576
Truckee Meadows Community College.....	30,482,995	30,380,532
Great Basin College .....	13,846,484	14,031,547
Business Center, North .....	2,272,027	2,272,027
Business Center, South .....	1,947,365	1,953,223
Nevada State College.....	10,976,434	11,066,261
Special Projects.....	2,365,120	2,372,235
Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education Administration .....	314,030	319,655
Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education Loan and Stipend .....	671,231	664,300
<b>Sec. 18.</b> Commission on Postsecondary Education.		
For the support of the Commission on Postsecondary Education .....	\$343,801	\$345,587
<b>Sec. 19.</b> Department of Cultural Affairs.		
For the support of the: Cultural Affairs		
Administration .....	\$915,624	\$920,639
Division of Museums and History .....	440,097	442,604
Nevada Historical Society, Reno.....	490,147	493,256
Nevada State Museum, Carson City .....	1,118,468	1,067,085
Nevada State Museum, Las Vegas.....	900,105	911,363
Lost City Museum.....	318,077	323,125



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Nevada State Railroad		
Museums.....	\$852,384	\$844,542
Nevada Arts Council.....	1,102,406	1,110,612
Nevada State Library .....	3,334,990	3,282,132
Nevada State Library –		
Literacy .....	153,871	155,579
Archives and Records .....	777,318	785,703
State Historic Preservation		
Office .....	166,760	161,692
Comstock Historic District .....	143,061	144,729
Nevada Humanities		
Committee.....	50,000	50,000

**Sec. 20.** Department of Health and Human Services.

For the support of the:

Health and Human Services		
Administration .....	\$1,392,721	\$1,514,392
Nevada Indian Commission.....	161,687	161,602
Grants Management Unit.....	3,547,862	3,697,120
Office of the State Public		
Defender .....	1,202,728	1,213,209
Division of Health Care		
Financing and Policy:		
Nevada Medicaid.....	384,604,822	483,315,080
Health Care Financing		
and Policy		
Administration.....	18,826,750	20,088,372
Nevada Check-Up		
Program .....	12,246,671	15,491,558
HIFA Holding		
Account .....	275,617	332,843
Division for Aging and		
Disability Services:		
Aging Federal		
Programs and		
Administration.....	3,533,225	3,666,716
State Council on		
Developmental		
Disabilities.....	156,565	156,565
Community-Based		
Services .....	9,078,290	9,116,014



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Home and Community- Based Programs.....	\$3,706,388	\$3,895,775
Senior Citizens' Property Tax Assistance .....	5,722,845	5,970,797
EPS/Homemaker Programs .....	80,270	135,282
Senior Rx and Disability Rx .....	103,137	103,284
Division of Child and Family Services:		
Community Juvenile Justice Programs.....	1,165,665	1,165,665
UNITY/SACWIS .....	2,904,705	2,880,615
Child and Family Administration.....	7,602,025	8,577,323
Nevada Youth Training Center .....	9,457,573	9,585,220
Caliente Youth Center .....	7,508,090	7,598,508
Rural Child Welfare .....	8,210,407	8,884,636
Youth Alternative Placement .....	1,704,979	1,704,979
Youth Parole Services .....	6,761,670	6,869,604
Northern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services .....	2,810,875	3,088,616
Clark County Integration .....	41,313,906	45,767,772
Washoe County Integration .....	14,278,544	15,321,327
Southern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services .....	8,705,555	9,758,662
Summit View Youth Correctional Center .....	5,901,207	5,965,901
Wraparound in Nevada.....	2,450,723	2,680,202
Child Care Services .....	100	100



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Health Division:		
Office of Health		
Administration.....	\$1,064,945	\$1,069,907
Health Statistics and		
Planning.....	840,149	852,045
Maternal Child Health		
Services.....	1,000,054	1,013,476
Early Intervention		
Services .....	16,635,651	19,458,045
Community Health		
Services.....	798,775	831,900
Consumer Health		
Protection.....	776,142	760,519
Communicable Diseases.....	2,110,383	2,092,653
Chronic Disease .....	788,432	785,827
Emergency Medical		
Services.....	844,099	846,056
Immunization Program .....	967,590	969,931
Office of Minority		
Health .....	118,764	118,317
Division of Mental Health and		
Developmental Services:		
Mental Health and		
Developmental		
Services		
Administration.....	2,612,319	2,622,121
Mental Health		
Information		
System .....	1,481,301	1,545,899
Southern Nevada Adult		
Mental Health		
Services .....	81,338,883	83,325,234
Northern Nevada Adult		
Mental Health		
Services .....	29,904,777	30,438,116
Lake's Crossing		
Center .....	9,711,072	9,778,097
Rural Clinics.....	12,305,393	12,940,806
Desert Regional		
Center .....	47,154,253	53,891,423
Sierra Regional		
Center .....	19,870,154	22,559,263





	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Rural Regional Center .....	\$8,751,840	\$9,726,331
Family Preservation Program .....	2,260,842	2,335,268
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Agency .....	10,578,467	10,608,678
Division of Welfare and Supportive Services:		
Welfare		
Administration.....	7,526,679	8,147,190
Welfare Field Services		
Account .....	23,503,303	26,125,308
Assistance to Aged and Blind.....	7,736,983	8,049,442
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families .....	24,565,852	24,565,852
Child Assistance and Development .....	8,453,594	8,461,590
<b>Sec. 21. Office of the Military:</b>		
For the support of the:		
Office of the Military .....	\$3,008,173	\$3,027,475
National Guard Benefits .....	55,094	55,100
<b>Sec. 22. Office of Veterans' Services:</b>		
For the support of the:		
Commissioner for Veterans' Affairs .....	\$1,958,055	\$1,971,715
Southern Nevada Veterans' Home.....	610,661	477,913
<b>Sec. 23. Department of Corrections.</b>		
For the support of the:		
Office of the Director.....	\$15,607,315	\$17,200,756
Medical Care .....	41,964,445	23,106,763
Correctional Programs .....	6,307,441	6,376,264
Southern Nevada Correctional Center.....	417,118	404,059
Southern Desert Correctional Center.....	21,143,657	11,217,297
Nevada State Prison .....	17,446,962	17,629,334



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Northern Nevada Correctional Center.....	\$23,672,573	\$23,921,258
Warm Springs Correctional Center.....	8,499,918	8,598,798
Ely State Prison.....	27,390,627	14,803,100
Lovelock Correctional Center.....	23,611,839	12,603,024
Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center.....	13,999,956	14,117,959
Stewart Conservation Camp.....	1,609,575	1,622,019
Ely Conservation Camp .....	1,321,487	1,331,639
Humboldt Conservation Camp.....	1,321,397	1,331,612
Three Lakes Valley Conservation Camp .....	2,221,016	2,251,849
Jean Conservation Camp.....	1,548,083	1,555,981
Pioche Conservation Camp.....	1,600,557	1,610,134
Carlin Conservation Camp.....	1,217,856	1,230,771
Wells Conservation Camp .....	1,234,907	1,245,390
Silver Springs Conservation Camp.....	40,991	41,026
Tonopah Conservation Camp.....	1,171,720	1,179,383
Northern Nevada Restitution Center.....	676,952	628,374
High Desert State Prison.....	40,132,457	21,284,815
Casa Grande Transitional Housing.....	3,492,648	3,572,081

**Sec. 24.** Department of Business and Industry.

For the support of the:

Business and Industry Administration .....	\$27,287	\$28,582
Division of Financial Institutions .....	100	100
Consumer Affairs .....	412,959	199,251
Real Estate Administration .....	1,074,974	1,070,188
Insurance Regulation .....	100	100
Office of Labor Commissioner .....	1,474,594	1,491,340



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
Nevada Athletic Commission .....	\$550,850	\$554,589
<b>Sec. 25.</b> Department of Agriculture.		
For the support of the:		
Agriculture Administration .....	\$502,438	\$476,521
Plant Industry Program .....	743,628	679,538
Veterinary Medical Services .....	855,351	834,870
Junior Livestock Show Board .....	25,686	25,670
Predatory Animal and Rodent Control .....	542,389	539,708
<b>Sec. 26.</b> Department of Conservation and Natural Resources.		
For the support of the:		
Conservation and Natural Resources		
Administration .....	\$782,319	\$753,807
Division of State Parks .....	5,294,276	5,280,121
Nevada Tahoe Regional Planning Agency .....	1,541	1,541
Nevada Natural Heritage Program .....	113,550	113,644
Division of Forestry .....	4,444,956	4,341,131
Forest Fire Suppression .....	2,500,000	2,500,000
Forestry Conservation		
Camps .....	5,531,089	5,526,340
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency .....	1,265,086	1,265,086
DEP – Water Quality Planning .....	217,328	288,961
DEP – Safe Drinking Water Regulatory Program .....	89,451	134,159
Division of Water		
Resources .....	6,038,311	5,932,745
Division of State Lands .....	1,198,449	1,192,361
Division of Conservation		
Districts .....	351,245	353,735
<b>Sec. 27.</b> Department of Wildlife.		
For the support of the Department of Wildlife .....	\$835,967	\$848,894



	<u>2009-2010</u>	<u>2010-2011</u>
<b>Sec. 28.</b> Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation.		
For the support of the:		
Nevada Equal Rights		
Commission .....	\$969,734	\$1,091,947
Bureau of Vocational		
Rehabilitation.....	2,887,156	2,879,554
Bureau of Services to the Blind		
and Visually Impaired.....	1,012,086	1,010,689
Rehabilitation		
Administration .....	2,786	2,791
<b>Sec. 29.</b> Department of Motor Vehicles.		
For the support of the Division of		
Field Services.....	\$18,230	\$18,230
<b>Sec. 30.</b> Department of Public Safety.		
For the support of the:		
Training Division.....	\$596,789	\$561,768
Justice Grant.....	90,513	91,709
Nevada Highway Patrol .....	17,693	1,066
Dignitary Protection.....	1,019,932	1,028,453
Division of Investigations .....	5,065,933	5,103,771
Division of Emergency		
Management .....	598,561	593,043
State Board of Parole		
Commissioners .....	2,560,196	2,522,151
Narcotics Control.....	2,548,058	2,573,558
Division of Parole and		
Probation.....	40,782,534	42,037,007
Central Repository for		
Nevada Records of Criminal		
History .....	100	100
Child Volunteer Background		
Checks.....	18,892	18,892
State Fire Marshal .....	1,267,923	1,191,665
<b>Sec. 31.</b> Commission on Ethics.		
For the support of the Commission		
on Ethics.....	\$229,107	\$228,308



**Sec. 32.** The following sums are hereby appropriated from the State Highway Fund for the purposes expressed in this section for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2010, and beginning July 1, 2010, and ending June 30, 2011:

Department of Motor Vehicles:

Office of the Director.....	\$4,765,986	\$4,728,696
Division of Administrative Services.....	4,806,496	4,949,726
Hearings Office .....	1,199,396	1,206,112
Automation .....	4,267,664	4,226,915
Division of Field Services.....	15,672,368	15,196,153
Division of Compliance Enforcement.....	4,460,695	4,507,321
Division of Central Services and Records .....	5,534,594	5,722,729
Research and Development.....	1,411,538	1,420,078
Motor Carrier Division .....	2,598,026	2,645,118
REAL ID .....	213,714	111,925

Department of Public Safety:

Training Division .....	888,456	835,674
Nevada Highway Patrol .....	67,673,110	65,940,261
Highway Safety Plan and Administration .....	211,731	208,136
Division of Investigations .....	366,673	370,672
State Emergency Response Commission .....	359,197	329,165

Department of Business and Industry:

Transportation Authority .....	2,643,308	2,608,179
--------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Legislative Fund:

Legislative Commission.....	5,000	5,000
-----------------------------	-------	-------

**Sec. 33.** 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, the sums appropriated in this act must be:

(a) Expended in accordance with the allotment, transfer, work program and budget provisions of NRS 353.150 to 353.245, inclusive; and

(b) Work-programmed for the 2 separate Fiscal Years, 2009-2010 and 2010-2011, as required by NRS 353.215. Work programs may be revised with the approval of the Governor upon the recommendation of the Director of the Department of Administration and in accordance with the provisions of the State Budget Act.



2. Transfers to and from salary allotments, travel allotments, operating expense allotments, equipment allotments and other allotments must be allowed and made in accordance with the provisions of NRS 353.215 to 353.225, inclusive, and after separate consideration of the merits of each request.

3. Pursuant to law, sums appropriated for the support of the Supreme Court of Nevada and the Legislative Fund are excluded from the allotment, transfer, work program and budget provisions of NRS 353.150 to 353.245, inclusive.

**Sec. 34.** The sums appropriated to:

1. Senior citizens' property tax assistance;
2. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act;
3. Forest fire suppression;
4. National Guard benefits;
5. Chronic disease;
6. Maternal child health services;
7. Immunization program;
8. Welfare administration;
9. Welfare Field Services Account;
10. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF);
11. Assistance to aged and blind;
12. Child Assistance and Development;
13. Nevada Medicaid;
14. Health Care Financing and Policy Administration;
15. Nevada Check-Up Program;
16. HIFA Holding Account;
17. Rural Child Welfare;
18. Attorney General's Special Litigation Account;
19. Attorney General's Office of the Extradition Coordinator;
20. Commission on Ethics;
21. Clark County Integration;
22. Washoe County Integration;
23. Child Volunteer Background Checks;
24. High Level Nuclear Waste; and
25. Information Technology Projects,

↪ are available for both Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011, and may be transferred from one fiscal year to the other with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.

**Sec. 35.** Amounts appropriated pursuant to sections 15, 16, 20, 26, 30, and 32 of this act to finance specific programs as outlined in this section are available for both Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 and may be transferred from one fiscal year to the other



with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor as follows:

1. Of the amounts appropriated to the Commission on Economic Development pursuant to section 15 of this act, a total of \$100,000 in both Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to support the Train Employees Now Program.

2. Of the amounts appropriated to the Department of Education, proficiency testing, pursuant to section 16 of this act:

(a) A total of \$3,719,816 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$3,525,862 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 for the high school proficiency examination and the criterion-referenced examination.

(b) A total of \$684,635 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$684,635 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 for the state writing proficiency examinations.

3. Of the amounts appropriated to the Division for Aging and Disability Services pursuant to section 20 of this act, a total of \$1,600,000 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$1,600,000 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to support the costs for the treatment of children with autism.

4. Of the amounts appropriated to the Division of Child and Family Services pursuant to section 20 of this act, a total of \$4,404,876 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$4,711,836 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to support the costs for mental health placements.

5. Of the amounts appropriated to the Health Division pursuant to section 20 of this act, a total of \$1,904,351 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$1,904,142 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to support medication costs within the AIDS Drug Assistance Program.

6. Of the amounts appropriated to the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency by section 26 of this act, a total of \$133,000 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$133,000 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to support the Pathway 2007 Regional Plan and Threshold Monitoring project.

7. Of the amounts appropriated to the Division of Parole and Probation of the State Department of Public Safety pursuant to section 30 of this act, a total of \$343,584 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 for the relocation of the Reno office of the division.

8. Of the amounts appropriated to the Nevada Highway Patrol of the State Department of Public Safety pursuant to section 32 of this act, a total of \$2,404,245 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 for the replacement of vehicles, motorcycles and associated equipment.

**Sec. 36.** Of the amounts appropriated to the Division of Child and Family Services, Clark County Integration and Washoe County Integration accounts pursuant to section 20 of this act, up to \$2,270,475 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and up to \$2,270,475 in Fiscal



Year 2010-2011 in the Clark County Integration account and up to \$1,317,258 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and up to \$1,317,258 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 in the Washoe County Integration account may be utilized, to the extent that other monies are not available, by the counties for child protective services, but may not be used to supplant county funds for child protective services.

**Sec. 37.** Of the amounts appropriated by sections 2 to 32, inclusive, of this act, amounts appropriated in both Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to finance deferred maintenance projects approved as maintenance decision units within agency budgets are available for both Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 and may be transferred within the same budget account from one year to the other with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor. Any amount so transferred must be used to complete the deferred maintenance as approved by the Legislature.

**Sec. 38.** Of the amounts appropriated by sections 2 to 32, inclusive, of this act in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 for:

1. Compensating an employee whose position has been terminated for unused annual leave or unused sick leave balances; or

2. Purchasing credit for service in the Public Employees' Retirement System on behalf of such an employee pursuant to NRS 286.3007,

➡ may be transferred to Fiscal Year 2008-2009 with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor. The State Controller shall process any transactions requested by the Director of the Department of Administration related to payments in this section until September 17, 2010.

**Sec. 39.** The sums appropriated to the Secretary of State, HAVA election reform account in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011 pursuant to section 5 of this act do not lapse to the State General Fund at the end of any fiscal year.

**Sec. 40.** 1. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund to the State Board of Examiners the sum of \$1,359,834 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$554,405 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 and from the State Highway Fund to the State Board of Examiners the sum of \$303,040 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$108,167 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 for the purpose of meeting any deficiencies which may be created between the appropriated money of the respective departments, commissions and agencies of the State of Nevada, as fixed by the 75<sup>th</sup> Session of the Legislature and the requirements for payment of unemployment compensation assessments to the Department of Personnel, unemployment





compensation account of those departments, commissions and agencies.

2. Amounts appropriated pursuant to subsection 1 are available for both Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 and may be transferred from one fiscal year to the other with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.

3. The State Board of Examiners, upon the recommendation of the Director of the Department of Administration, may allocate and disburse to various departments, commissions and agencies of the State of Nevada, out of the money appropriated by this section such sums of money as may from time to time be required, which, when added to the money otherwise appropriated or available, equal the amount of money required to pay unemployment compensation assessments to the Department of Personnel, unemployment compensation account of the respective departments, commissions and agencies.

4. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by subsection 1 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 16, 2011, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State General Fund, or the State Highway Fund, respectively, on or before September 16, 2011.

**Sec. 41.** 1. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund the sum of \$1,600,000 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and \$1,600,000 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to the Interim Finance Committee for allocation to the Division of Child and Family Services of the Department of Health and Human Services for the establishment of an enhanced foster care rate for children in sibling groups in which one sibling requires a higher level of care placement. Money appropriated pursuant to this section can only be allocated by the Interim Finance Committee upon submittal by the Division of Child and Family Services of a plan for the utilization of the enhanced rate, to include certification by the Administration for Children and Families of the United States Department of Health and Human Services of the eligibility of the enhanced rate for reimbursement with federal Title IV-E funds.



2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by subsection 1 must not be allocated by the Interim Finance Committee after June 30, 2011. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by subsection 1 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, of each fiscal year, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining for each fiscal year must not be spent for any purpose after September 17, 2010, for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and September 16, 2011, for Fiscal Year 2010-2011, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 17, 2010, for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and September 16, 2011, for Fiscal Year 2010-2011.

**Sec. 42.** 1. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund the sum of \$2,256,676 to the Interim Finance Committee for allocation to the Information Technology Projects account within the Department of Administration for the costs of software implementation for the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services, Eligibility Operations Data System Enhancement project.

2. Money appropriated pursuant to subsection 1 may only be allocated by the Interim Finance Committee upon submittal of a vendor cost proposal for the software implementation, updated cost estimates for the entire project, and information on the actual equipment and software costs incurred to date for the project from the sums appropriated to the Information Technology Projects account within the Department of Administration pursuant to section 8 of this act.

3. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by subsection 1 must not be allocated by the Interim Finance Committee after June 30, 2011. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by subsection 1 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 16, 2011, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 16, 2011.

**Sec. 43.** 1. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund the sum of \$15,000,000 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and



\$15,000,000 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to the Interim Finance Committee for allocation to the State Treasurer for repayment of the principal amount of any notes issued pursuant to the provisions of NRS 349.074.

2. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by subsection 1 must not be allocated by the Interim Finance Committee after June 30, 2011. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by subsection 1 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 16, 2011, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 16, 2011.

**Sec. 44.** 1. The sums appropriated to the Legislative Fund by section 11 of this act for the support of the Legislative Commission, the various divisions of the Legislative Counsel Bureau and Interim Legislative Operations are available for both Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011, and may be transferred among the Legislative Commission, the various divisions of the Legislative Counsel Bureau and the Interim Legislative Operations and from one fiscal year to another with the approval of the Legislative Commission upon the recommendation of the Director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau.

2. The sums appropriated for the support of salaries and payroll costs must be applied pursuant to the budget approved by the Legislature notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 281.123.

**Sec. 45.** Except as otherwise provided in this section, the total amounts appropriated in section 20 of this act to each of the accounts of the Division of Health Care Financing and Policy and the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the Department of Health and Human Services enumerated in section 34 of this act, except for the amounts appropriated for the Health Care Financing and Policy Administration Account, the Assistance to the Aged and Blind Program, the Welfare Administration Account and the Welfare Field Services Account, are limits. The divisions shall not request additional money for these programs, except for:

1. Increased state costs in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 in the event that federal financial participation rates are less than legislatively approved effective on October 1, 2010;



2. Costs related to additional services mandated by the Federal Government on or after October 1, 2009, and not specifically funded in the Nevada Medicaid account in Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011;

3. Costs related to an increase in the cost-per-eligible for the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) population that is higher than the cost-per-eligible used to project Medicaid expenditures for this population in the legislatively approved budget for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011; and

4. Increased state costs in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011 in the event that the annual allocation of federal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant funds is lower than the amounts approved by the Legislature for either fiscal year.

**Sec. 46.** The sums appropriated to the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the Department of Health and Human Services by section 20 of this act may be transferred among the various budget accounts of the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.

**Sec. 47.** The sums appropriated to Nevada Medicaid and the Nevada Check Up Program by section 20 of this act may be transferred between each budget with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.

**Sec. 48.** The sums appropriated to the Department of Corrections by section 23 of this act may be transferred among the various budget accounts of the Department of Corrections in the same manner and within the same limits as allowed for revisions of work programs in NRS 353.220.

**Sec. 49.** Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 501.356, the Department of Wildlife shall, with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor, create new budget accounts for Fiscal Year 2010-2011. The positions approved within the budgets of, and the money appropriated in section 27 of this act for the department in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 may be transferred between the various budget accounts of the department, including any new accounts created pursuant to this section, for the purposes of separating the revenues and expenditures of the Wildlife Account into multiple accounts to facilitate tracking, reporting, accountability and planning with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.



**Sec. 50.** Of the amounts appropriated from the State Highway Fund to the Department of Motor Vehicles, Director's Office, pursuant to section 32 of this act:

1. A total of \$1,593,291 in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 for the expansion and continuation of kiosk technology; and

2. A total of \$1,643,903 in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 for the expansion and continuation of kiosk technology,

➔ may be transferred from one fiscal year to another with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor.

**Sec. 51.** The sums appropriated to any division, agency or section of any department of State Government for the support of salaries and payroll costs may be transferred to any other division, bureau, agency or section of the same department for the support of salaries and payroll costs with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the Governor. The amount transferred into a budget account is limited to the amount budgeted for vacancy savings. Such transfers are also limited only to those activities which are supported by State General Fund or State Highway Fund appropriations.

**Sec. 52.** In addition to the requirements of NRS 353.225, for the Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011, the Board of Regents of the University of Nevada shall comply with any request by the Governor to set aside money from the appropriations made by this act in any specified amount.

**Sec. 53.** 1. Of the sums appropriated by section 17 of this act, any amounts used to match documented research grants in the Nevada System of Higher Education which are not committed for expenditure by June 30 of each fiscal year may be carried forward for a maximum of 2 fiscal years after which time any unexpended amounts revert to the State General Fund.

2. All money appropriated by section 17 of this act other than the sums designated in subsection 1 to match documented research grants is subject to the provisions of section 56 of this act.

**Sec. 54.** The appropriation of all of the sums appropriated by section 20 of this act to the Division of Child and Family Services of the Department of Health and Human Services for expenses incurred by Clark County and Washoe County for the integration of child welfare services are dependent upon all funds, whether state or local, being used in a manner such that the child welfare agencies are the sole client of the district attorneys in each case in which the District Attorney or Deputy District Attorney is serving as the attorney for a child welfare agency.



**Sec. 55.** There is hereby appropriated \$135,053 from the State General Fund to the Public Employees' Retirement Board to be expended for the administration of the Legislators' Retirement System for the period from July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2011.

**Sec. 56.** 1. Except as otherwise provided in sections 39, 53, and 55 of this act, any balances of the appropriations made in this act for the Fiscal Years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30 of each fiscal year by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining cannot be spent for any purpose after September 17, 2010, and September 16, 2011, for each fiscal year respectively, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred and, except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, must revert to the fund from which appropriated on or before September 17, 2010, and September 16, 2011, of each fiscal year respectively.

2. Any encumbered balance of the appropriations made to the Legislative Fund by section 11 of this act does not revert to the State General Fund but constitutes a balance carried forward.

**Sec. 57.** The State Controller shall provide for the payment of claims legally obligated in each fiscal year on behalf of state agencies until the last business day of the August immediately following the end of each fiscal year. The State Controller shall process any transactions requested by the Director of the Department of Administration from the prior fiscal period until the third Friday in September immediately following the end of the fiscal year.

**Sec. 58.** The State Controller shall transfer among the appropriate accounts and funds the amounts necessary to carry out the budget approved by the Legislature, and the amounts so transferred shall be deemed appropriated.

**Sec. 59.** The State Controller shall pay the annual salaries of Supreme Court Justices, District Court Judges, the Governor, the Lieutenant Governor, the Secretary of State, the State Treasurer, the State Controller and the Attorney General in biweekly installments for each day worked up to and including the date of payment. The payment of a portion of the annual salaries of these officers at the end of a calendar year for the purpose of reconciling the amount of the salary paid during that calendar year with the amount of the salary set forth in statute for that office must not be made if it will result in the issuance of a separate check.



**Sec. 60.** Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 5 of NRS 120A.620, at the end of Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and Fiscal Year 2010-2011, of the balance in the Abandoned Property Trust Account in the State General Fund, the first \$3,800,000 must be transferred to the Millennium Scholarship Trust Fund created by NRS 396.926 with the remainder transferred to the State General Fund, subject to the valid claims of holders pursuant to NRS 120A.590 and owners pursuant to NRS 120A.640.

**Sec. 61.** 1. If the Executive Director for Veterans' Services determines that delays in the receipt of federal reimbursement for services provided by the Veterans' Home in Southern Nevada will result in insufficient revenues to pay authorized expenditures, he may submit a request for a temporary advance from the State General Fund to the Director of the Department of Administration to pay authorized expenditures to support operational costs of the Veterans' Home.

2. The Director of the Department of Administration shall provide written notification to the State Controller and to the Senate and Assembly Fiscal Analysts of the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau if he approves a request made pursuant to subsection 1. The State Controller shall draw a warrant upon receipt of such a notification.

3. An advance from the State General Fund approved by the Director of the Department of Administration as authorized pursuant to this section is limited to the total estimated reimbursement due from the Federal Government for operational costs incurred by the Veterans' Home in Southern Nevada.

4. Any money which is temporarily advanced from the State General Fund to the Veterans' Home in Southern Nevada pursuant to this section must be repaid on or before the last business day in August immediately following the end of the fiscal year.

**Sec. 62.** 1. If the Director of the State Department of Conservation and Natural Resources determines that, because of delays in the receipt of revenue for services billed to the Federal Government, local governments and other state governments, the amount of current claims for expenses incurred in the suppression of fire or response to emergencies exceeds the amount of money available to pay such claims within 30 days, he may request from the Director of the Department of Administration a temporary advance from the State General Fund to pay authorized expenses.

2. The Director of the Department of Administration shall provide written notification to the State Controller and to the Senate and Assembly Fiscal Analysts of the Fiscal Analysis Division of the



Legislative Counsel Bureau if he approves a request made pursuant to subsection 1. The State Controller shall draw his warrant upon receipt of such a notification.

3. An advance from the State General Fund:

(a) May be approved by the Director of the Department of Administration only for expenses incurred in the suppression of fires or response to emergencies charged to the budget account for forest fire suppression of the Division of Forestry of the State Department of Conservation and Natural Resources. Before approving the advance, the Director shall verify that billings for reimbursement have been sent to the agencies of the Federal Government, local governments or other state governments responsible for reimbursing the Division of Forestry for costs incurred in fire suppression or emergency response activities.

(b) Is limited to the total due from outstanding billings for reimbursable expenses incurred in the suppression of fires or response to emergencies as approved for payment to the State by agencies of the Federal Government, local governments and other state governments.

4. Any money which is temporarily advanced from the State General Fund to the budget account for forest fire suppression pursuant to this section must be repaid on or before the last business day in August immediately following the end of the fiscal year.

**Sec. 63.** 1. If the Governor orders the Nevada National Guard into active duty as described in NRS 412.122 for an emergency as described in NRS 353.263 and the Adjutant General of the Nevada National Guard determines expenditures will be required, the Adjutant General may request from the Director of the Department of Administration a temporary advance from the State General Fund for the payment of authorized expenses.

2. The Director of the Department of Administration shall provide written notification to the State Controller and to the Senate and Assembly Fiscal Analysts of the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval of a request made pursuant to subsection 1. The State Controller shall draw his warrant upon receipt of the approval by the Director of the Department of Administration.

3. An advance from the State General Fund:

(a) Must be approved by the Director of the Department of Administration for expenses incurred as a result of activation of the Nevada National Guard.

(b) Is limited to \$25,000 per activation as described in subsection 1.





4. Any money which is temporarily advanced from the State General Fund to an account pursuant to subsection 3 must be repaid as soon as possible, and must come from the emergency account established under NRS 353.263.

**Sec. 64.** 1. If projections of the ending balance of the State General Fund fall below the amount estimated by the 2009 Legislature for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 or 2010-2011, the Director of the Department of Administration shall report this information to the State Board of Examiners.

2. If the State Board of Examiners determines that the ending balance of the State General Fund is projected to be less than \$80,000,000 for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 or 2010-2011, the Governor, pursuant to NRS 353.225, may direct the Director of the Department of Administration to require the State Controller or the head of each department, institution or agency to set aside a reserve of not more than 15 percent of the total amount of operating expenses or other appropriations and money otherwise available to the department, institution or agency.

3. A reserve must not be set aside pursuant to this section unless:

(a) The Governor, on behalf of the State Board of Examiners, submits a report to the Legislature or, if the Legislature is not in session, to the Interim Finance Committee, stating the reasons why a reserve is needed and indicating each department, institution or agency that will be required to set aside a reserve; and

(b) The Legislature or Interim Finance Committee approves the setting aside of the reserve.

**Sec. 65.** If the State of Nevada is required to make payment to the United States Treasury under the provisions of Public Law 101-453, the Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990, the State Controller, upon approval of the State Board of Examiners, may make such payments from the interest earnings of the State General Fund or interest earnings in other funds when interest on federal money has been deposited in those funds.

**Sec. 66.** Subject to actions the federal government may take that may conflict with the Nevada Legislature's allocation of Stabilization Funds or related transfers pursuant to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, amounts appropriated from the General Fund may be transferred between the Nevada System of Higher Education and the Nevada Department of Education, including the State Distributive School Account, with the approval of the Interim Finance Committee upon the recommendation of the



Governor so long as corresponding transfers of Stabilization Funds occur.

**Sec. 67.** Section 1 of Assembly Bill No. 533 of this session is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 1. ~~[There]~~ *Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 353.213, there* is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund to the State Distributive School Account created by NRS 387.030 the sum of \$323,802,183 to cover unanticipated shortfalls in the revenue from the Local School Support Tax and the ad valorem tax pursuant to subsection 1 of NRS 387.195. This appropriation is supplemental to that made by section 2 of chapter 343, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at page 1553.

**Sec. 68.** Section 1 of chapter 1, Statutes of Nevada 2008, 25th Special Session, at page 2, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 1. Chapter 349 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as follows:

1. The State Treasurer may, on or before August 31, ~~[2009.]~~ *2011*, in the name and on behalf of the State of Nevada, borrow money and evidence such borrowing by the issuance of one or more notes in an aggregate principal amount that does not exceed \$160 million. Each such note:

(a) Must be issued upon the order of the State Treasurer and pursuant to the provisions of the State Securities Law, except to the extent that those provisions are inconsistent with the provisions of this section; and

(b) May be issued without the approval of the State Board of Finance or any other board, commission or agency of this State.

↪ For the purposes of this section and the State Securities Law, the State Treasurer shall be deemed to constitute an agency of the State and any order of the State Treasurer authorizing the issuance of a note pursuant to this section shall be deemed to constitute a resolution authorizing the issuance of the note.

2. Each note authorized pursuant to this section must be:

(a) Issued pursuant to a written contract between the State and the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, under which the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund agrees to invest in the note or notes issued pursuant to this section. The contract must be executed by the Governor on behalf of the State and by the State Treasurer on behalf of the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund.



(b) Sold to the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund at a price equal to the principal amount borrowed under the note. The total amount invested by the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund in notes issued pursuant to this section must not exceed:

(1) Twenty-five percent of the book value of the total investments of the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund on the date of the investment by the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund; or

(2) One hundred sixty million dollars,

↳ whichever is less. The determination as to whether the requirements of this paragraph are satisfied must be made by the State Treasurer on the date of each investment by the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund in a note issued pursuant to this section. Each such determination shall be deemed to be conclusive and is not affected by any subsequent changes in the book value of the total investments of the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, the principal amount outstanding on any notes issued pursuant to this section must bear interest, payable monthly on the first business day of each calendar month, at a rate equal to ~~25~~ 50 basis points above the average monthly rate of earnings of all the investments, other than any investments in notes issued pursuant to this section, of money in the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund during the immediately preceding calendar month.

4. The total principal amount borrowed on or before August 31, ~~2009,~~ 2011, pursuant to this section must be repaid in installments in such a manner that:

(a) At least 25 percent of ~~the total~~ *each* principal amount borrowed ~~on or before August 31, 2009,~~ pursuant to this section must be repaid ~~[, for Fiscal Year 2009-2010, on or before August 31, 2010;]~~ *by the first day of the calendar month that is 13 months after the month in which that borrowing occurred;*

(b) At least 50 percent of ~~the total~~ *each* principal amount borrowed ~~on or before August 31, 2009,~~ pursuant to this section must be repaid ~~[, for Fiscal Year 2010-2011, on or before August 31, 2011;]~~ *by the first day of the calendar month that is 25 months after the month in which that borrowing occurred;*



(c) At least 75 percent of ~~{the total}~~ *each* principal amount borrowed ~~{on or before August 31, 2009,}~~ pursuant to this section must be repaid ~~[, for Fiscal Year 2011-2012, on or before August 31, 2012;]~~ *by the first day of the calendar month that is 37 months after the month in which that borrowing occurred;* and

(d) The entire total principal amount borrowed ~~{on or before August 31, 2009,}~~ pursuant to this section must be repaid ~~[, for Fiscal Year 2012-2013, on or before August 31, 2013;]~~ *by the first day of the calendar month that is 49 months after the month in which that borrowing occurred.*

↪ The provisions of this subsection do not prohibit the repayment of the principal amount of any note issued pursuant to this section earlier than the ~~{dates}~~ *periods* specified in this subsection.

5. Each note issued pursuant to this section constitutes a general obligation of the State, and the full faith and credit of the State is hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the note.

6. If necessary to provide money to any local governments that have invested in the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, any note issued pursuant to this section, or any portion thereof, may be sold by the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund upon the direction of the State Treasurer. Each note so sold must:

(a) Be payable as to principal on or before the ~~{dates}~~ *periods* specified in subsection 4, except that the note may have a fixed maturity date, without option of redemption, so long as the principal amount of all the notes issued pursuant to this section are retired in accordance with subsection 4.

(b) Bear interest, payable monthly on the first business day of each calendar month, at such a rate or rates as the State Treasurer determines to be sufficient to enable the sale of the note at a price that is not less than the principal amount thereof.

7. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, any statutory limitation on the rate of interest that would otherwise apply to securities issued by or on behalf of this State shall be deemed not to apply to any rate of interest payable on any notes issued pursuant to this section.

8. The proceeds from the sale of any notes pursuant to this section to the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, net of costs of issuance, must be deposited into the



State General Fund and used for the general operation of this State.

9. As used in this section, "Local Government Pooled Investment Fund" means the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund created by NRS 355.167.

**Sec. 69.** Section 10 of chapter 1, Statutes of Nevada 2008, 25th Special Session, at page 9, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 10. 1. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Section 2 of this act expires by limitation on June 30, ~~2011.~~ **2013.**

3. Sections 1 and 3 of this act expire by limitation on August 31, ~~2013.~~ **2015.**

**Sec. 70.** 1. This section and sections 38, 66 to 69, inclusive, of this act become effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1 to 37, inclusive, and 39 to 65, inclusive, of this act become effective on July 1, 2009.

